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CLARIFICATION NO. 3 FROM THE GSA 

 

Relating to Procurement Procedure GSA/OP/20/14 “FRAME - Framing the definition and develop-

ment of new PRS use cases based on innovative technologies” 

 

Question no. 2: In Annex 1, namely in section 2.13.5 of the Tender Specifications, p. 27, it is stat-

ed that “Mandatory subcontracting of at least WP5 as defined in Annex I.J –Technical Specifica-

tions”. However no such information is contained in Annex I.J. Is GSA contemplating to have 

Mandatory subcontractors? 

Answer: The tasks subject to WP5 are described in Annex I.J. under section 2.3.4.5. The tasks 

thereunder shall be subject to competitive subcontracting by the tenderer to be performed before 

submission of his tender. The performance of the competitive tendering shall be evidenced by 

submitting documents describing the tender process performed and its results. For complying with 

the requirement of competitive tendering tenderers shall demonstrate having received quotations 

from at least two economic operators, not belonging to the same group. The quotations shall be 

submitted following a request for quotation on equal, transparent, and non-discriminatory terms, 

applying the exclusion criteria as well as the selection criteria relevant for the performance of the 

subcontracting. 

 

Question no. 3: In Annex 1, namely in section 2.13.5 of the Tender Specifications, p. 27, it is stat-

ed that “Optional further subcontracting up to a maximum of 15% of the total contract value”, 

that “The tenderer shall perform the subcontracting by competitive tendering to companies oth-

er than those which belong to its group” Ref. 6 page 27 define the world “group” and that “Sub-

contracting beyond the prescribed maximum of 15 % may also lead to the tender’s exclusion 

from the process”.   

Our understanding is that the Tenderer can be a group of companies (regrouped under a consor-

tium + nominated subcontractors for example). In this sense, we would like to know if (i) this 

group should subcontract additional 15% to further companies, under a competitive process, af-

ter having been selected by the GSA to perform the contract or if 15% is the overall amount that 

GSA is willing that the consortium subcontracts to “nominated subcontractors” + “further sub-

contractors under competitive procurement”? 

Answer: The percentage range stated in the Tender Specifications shall be considered as mandato-

ry only for the competitive subcontracting. The mandatory competitive subcontracting for WP5 

shall be performed before the submission of the tender and shall not include members of the con-

sortium nor belonging to the tenderer’s / consortium member’s grouping. Additional competitive 

tendering up to 15% of the overall amount of the contract may be done outside the tenderer’s 

grouping and before the submission of the tender. Further subcontracting is possible also on a non-

competitive basis with no restrictions in terms of group belonging and percentages. 
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IMPORTANT NOTE: Tenderers shall ensure that the security requirements for subcontracting fur-

ther elaborated in the answer to question no. 4 below are followed. 

 

Question no. 4: In Annex 1, namely in section 2.13.6 of the Tender Specifications, p. 27, Condi-

tions to bid as Consortia are described in 2.13.6.  Ref 6 of 2.13.6 describes the possibility to bid as 

a group. Is that meaning that “nominated subcontractors” will not be accepted by GSA as part of 

the Tenderer? 

Answer: The members of a consortium as described under section 2.13.6 of the Tender Specifica-

tions are not considered subcontractors. In contrast, subcontractors nominated as part of the ten-

der shall be chosen: 

(1) in competitive tendering within the range of 5-15% of the total contract value and may not 
be part of a group belonging to the tenderer/consortium members; 

(2) Beyond the range of (1) above also in non-competitive tendering with no restrictions in 
terms of percentage of the total contract value and with no restrictions in terms of group 
belonging. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: When subcontracting, tenderers shall ensure that all security requirements, in 

particular but without limitation the requirements of the Security Aspects letter are flown down to 

the subcontractor level. Furthermore, the tenderer shall demonstrate a management approach en-

suring that all security requirements continue to be fulfilled on all levels of his tender structure. 

Accordingly, section 2.13.5 of the Tender Specifications shall be read and interpreted in light of the 

answer provided above, i.e. “Subcontracting beyond the prescribed maximum 15% may lead to the 

tenderer’s exclusion from the process, if the security requirements are not properly flown down to 

the subcontractor level.”  

 

Question no. 5: In Annex 1, namely sections 2.8, 2.9 and 2.10 of the Tender Specifications, pp. 18 

to 21, describe the “Security framework” that tenderers will have to follow within the execution of 

this contract. 

Since all companies involved will have “on a need to know basis” be accredited by their National 

CPAs in one (or more) of the categories described in 2.9, do we have to organize the consortia to 

respect National CPA demand, i.e:  

 by organizing the consortia through “national consortia (with their own leader)” re-

grouped in the “final consortia” (with the overall consortium leader). Such organization is 

on line with Industry PRS hearing by GSA that were organized Nationally during spring 

2014. 

 Or regrouping Industrial partners within the WPs or through potential uses case, technol-

ogies or solution.  

Can GSA advise what is expected? 

Answer: GSA considers both the approaches completely acceptable. While confirming that the “In-

dustry PRS hearing” shall not be considered as a driver for the organisation of the tenderers in con-
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sortia, GSA prefers to leave to tenderers the possibility to set-up what they consider the most suit-

able composition and organisation of operators and layers for fitting the purpose of the contract.  

 

Question no. 6: Section 2.1.3.5 of the Tender Specifications, states ‘Optional further subcontract-

ing up to a maximum of 15% of the total contract value’ - does this 15% apply to the work sub 

contracted within our consortium (when adopting a prime/sub-contractor model)? 

Answer: Please refer to answers to Question 3 and 4. 

 

Question no. 7: Which ECSS standard is being referred to in Section 2.7 - Acceptance of delivera-

bles page 18/48 of the Tender Specifications? 

Answer: It is meant the “ECSS-E-ST-10C - System engineering general requirements” that can be 

downloaded at www.ecss.nl. However, this is given only as a reference: it is up to the contractor to 

tailor ECSS Standard for the specificity of this Contract. 

 

Question no. 8: In order to offer GSA the best possible solution for FRAME we have striven to pull 

together a large number of companies from across the EU with proven track record in PRS. This 

complex arrangement will provide best value to GSA; however it will not be possible to complete 

the formation of this highly skilled team in the time available. As such we request an extension to 

the ITT submission date until 29th May 2015. 

Answer: Due to the importance of the timely execution of the activities foreseen in FRAME, an ex-

tension to the ITT submission period cannot be accepted.  

 

Question no. 9: We believe that we will have to sub contract across a large range of potential 

participants in order to access the various technology specialisms arising from this contract. We 

therefore believe that 15% sub contracting limit (Annex I section 2.13.5) is inadequate, could you 

confirm if it is possible to increase this? 

Answer: Please refer to answers to Question no. 3 and no. 4. 

 

Questions no. 10 to 14: This question relates to Annex I.J of the tender documents which was not 

made immediately accessible to the public but only following the specific request procedure de-

scribed under section 2.3 of Annex I and Clarification No 1. All legal entities having requested access 

to Annex I.J receive this directly by email. 
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